
 
 

 
 
 

INDIVIDUAL CABINET MEMBER AND OFFICER DELEGATED DECISIONS 
 

MONDAY, 31 JULY 2017 
 
 
 
Please find enclosed a Decision Notice in connection with the following: 
 
ODD11  ECONOMIC RESERVE GROWTH ALLOCATIONS (Pages 1 - 9) 
 
Please note that this is subject to call-in. 
 
 
 
Queries regarding these documents 
 
Please contact Tessa Mott, Democratic Services - telephone 01524 582074, or e-mail 
tmott@lancaster.gov.uk. 
 
 
Democratic Services, 
Town Hall, 
Dalton Square, 
Lancaster, 
LA1 1PJ 
 
Published on MONDAY, 31 JULY 2017 

 



 
EXECUTIVE DECISIONS TAKEN BY DELEGATED OFFICER 

NOTICE OF DECISION  
 

THIS SECTION TO BE COMPLETED BY THE PORTFOLIO HOLDER AND CONTACT OFFICER 

 

TITLE OF DECISION: ECONOMIC GROWTH RESERVE ALLOCATIONS 

 

NAME OF DECISION TAKER: NADINE MUSCHAMP 

POSITION AND 
RESPONSIBILITY HELD: 

CHIEF OFFICER (RESOURCES) 

CONTACT OFFICER: NADINE MUSCHAMP / ANNE MARIE HARRISON  

TELEPHONE: 01524  582117 / 582308 

E-MAIL: nmuschamp@lancaster.gov.uk / amharrison@lancaster.gov.uk  

Details of Decision:  
 
Following consideration of a number of proposals, Cabinet indicated their support for the following 
allocations.  
 

Economic Growth Reserve £ 

Economic Growth Strategy 15,000 

Economic Development Staff Resource (2 years) 101,700 

Marketing & Communications Staff Resource (2 years) 111,400 

Growth Lancashire (2 years) 30,000 

Business Events / Sponsorship 13,100 

Marketing Materials 5,000 

Place Narrative & Perspective (estimated amount) 20,000 

Signage (Central Morecambe’s Main Roads) Max. up to: 25,000 

Total Allocations 321,200 

 
Details are attached to this decision notice. 
 
The Chief Officer (Resources) has delegated authority to allocate the reserves, following consultation 
(and therefore agreement) of Cabinet.  Such decisions are now being effected in line with Cabinet’s 
views, subject to call-in. 
 
The Reserve had an opening balance of £500,000. After allowing for the above and one further 
allocation approved by Cabinet at its June meeting (minute 13 refers), a balance of £28,800 would 
remain. 

 
Reasons for the decision:   
 
All allocations are in support of economic growth related activities, in line with the approved use of 
the reserve. 

 

IS THE DECISION URGENT  
NO  
 
PLEASE DELETE AS APPROPRIATE AND GIVE REASONS FOR URGENCY BELOW: N/A 
 

mailto:nmuschamp@lancaster.gov.uk
mailto:amharrison@lancaster.gov.uk


 
I CONFIRM THAT I HAVE BEEN CONSULTED ON THE ABOVE DECISION AND THAT IT IS URGENT AND 

REASONABLE IN ALL THE CIRCUMSTANCES. (IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 17 OF THE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PROCEDURE 

RULES) 
SIGNATURE OF THE OVERVIEW & 

SCRUTINY CHAIRMAN: 
N/A 

   

SIGNATURE OF DECISION TAKER: Nadine Muschamp  
 

DATE: 31.07.2017 

THIS SECTION TO BE COMPLETED BY DEMOCRATIC SERVICES REF NO. ODD11 

DATE DECISION 

TAKEN: 
31.07.17 

DATE RECEIVED BY 

DEMOCRATIC SERVICES: 
31.07.17 

DATE DECISION 

PUBLISHED: 31.07.17 

IMPLEMENTATION DATE 
( publication day + 5 
working days): 

08.08.17 

  



 
 
The establishment of an Economic Growth Reserve was approved by Council on 01 March 2017, 
together with a contribution of £500K.  Its purpose is to promote economic growth within the 
district through various projects and activities. 
 
Use of the reserve was delegated to the Chief Officer (Resources), but subject to consultation 
(and therefore agreement) with Cabinet. 
 
The table below summarises the proposals, and the attached documents provide the details 
behind them. 

 
 

Economic Growth Reserve £ 

Opening Balance: (500,000) 

Economic Growth Strategy 15,000 

Economic Development Staff Resource (2 years) 101,700 

Marketing & Communications Staff Resource (2 years) 111,400 

Growth Lancashire (2 years) 30,000 

Business Events / Sponsorship 13,100 

Marketing Materials 5,000 

Place Narrative & Perspective (estimated amount) 20,000 

Signage (Central Morecambe’s Main Roads) 50,000 

Closing Balance: (if all bids agreed) (153,800) 

 
 
The initial proposals total £346,200 and if all supported, they would leave a balance of £153,800 
available.   
 
It should be noted that earmarked reserves such as this can only be used to support one-off or 
fixed-term costs.  
 
The Chief Officer now seeks Cabinet’s views on which items they wish to support.  Those views 
will form the basis of her decision-making, which given the likely amounts involved, will be subject 
to call-in.  Any allocations will also be reported through as part of the Quarter 1 Corporate 
Performance and Financial Monitoring report. 
 
Alternatively, Cabinet could choose to take the decisions itself, in which a case a report would be 
prepared for the next available Cabinet meeting. 
 

Briefing Note to CABINET BRIEFING 

From: CHIEF OFFICER (RESOURCES)  

Date 20 JUNE 2017 

Subject ECONOMIC GROWTH RESERVE 



 Appendix 1 

Cabinet Briefing 20 June 2017 

Economic Growth Reserve Proposals  

 

1. Introduction 

An Economic Growth Reserve was approved by Council on 01 March 2017, and this report 

provides further information on indicative activities and expenditure to deliver economic growth 

outcomes.  

A number of initial items to begin early work to redevelop the Council’s economic development 

services are now proposed for approval as presented in the table below: 

2. Economic Strategy 

Support for the development of the Economic Growth Strategy - £15K 

This is an important piece of work that will provide clarity and facilitate agreement on economic 

growth priorities and delivery for the district. Work to be undertaken will involve close 

communication with Council officers and members, business and economy stakeholder 

engagement, analysis and conclusions from up to date and emerging economic evidence 

base, development of strategy recommendations, presentation to stakeholder groups.   

For information, two supporting pieces of work are currently being progressed as part of Local 

Plan work.  These include: 

Update on “Prospects and Recommendations for Achieving Economic Potential 2015”  

This document was provided by Turley’s as part of the Local Plan evidence base and to inform 

a developing Economic Growth Strategy and much of this work is still extremely current. 

However, since 2015, some significant influences have emerged that need to be factored in, 

including national policies around Place, sector development and Brexit. 

Inclusive growth study and recommendations  

No recent work has been undertaken to consider how local communities can contribute to and 

draw on the benefits of economic growth.  However, this is important in terms of, for example, 

local skills supply and prospects and quality of life for local people. This study will recommend 

approaches to help ensure local economic growth can benefit everyone.  

3. Economic Development Staff Resource 

Economic Development Officer (Business and Skills) and part time Economic 

Development Assistant (0.5fte) - £101.7K (2 years fixed term contracts) 

Since a series of restructures some years ago, the Council has had no capacity to properly 

engage with businesses to understand their needs and help them access support, or to 

undertake work to develop the district’s skills base.  The additional 1.5 posts will allow some 

of this work to recommence. 

This level of resource is still low but the intention is not to duplicate but to work alongside 

partners, increasing access to all of the quality business support services that exist, creating 

the opportunity for businesses to be connected to a large Lancaster District business support 

network.   



 

Activities will include: 

 Business engagement and enquiries 

 Inward Investment and International Trade support 

 A programme of business events 

 Representation at Trade events 

 Developing a comprehensive business listing 

 Business surveys 

 Partner engagement and contacts 

 Business communications – What’s On, Who’s Who, News, Views, Offers 

There is excitement at the prospect that the Council intends to engage more directly in 

Economic Development but, as a result, expectations have risen considerably and demand is 

growing. This is extremely positive but within current resources is also very difficult to manage. 

This has created urgency regarding the proposal to invest in these posts. 

Future needs will be informed by the Council’s ongoing aims to promote the district and attract 

investment and what progress and developments occur in the interim.  In that context, it is 

proposed to create the posts on a 2 year fixed term contract basis, with future needs being 

considered initially as part of the 2019/20 budget process.  That will allow time to draw on 

progress and any changing circumstances. 

4. Marketing Staff Resource 

1 Senior Marketing Officer and 1 Assistant Marketing Officer (apprentice) - £111.4K (2 

year fixed term contracts) 

The Council currently has two aligned teams with marketing responsibilities.  

The Tourism Marketing and Events team has 2.6 fte and undertakes all tourism and 

destination marketing, as well as providing core capacity for major festivals and events. This 

team has a challenging workload. 

The Communications and Marketing Team supports the Council’s corporate activities, 

including all press, other media and PR, internal and external communications, web site and 

digital developments and management, film and TV location services and marketing for the 

Council’s commercial services. Marketing support is provided for services across the Council, 

including, for example, Salt Ayre, the Platform, the Storey and Printroom and business 

services, such as business waste and environmental health support services. Demand for 

marketing support has grown and is expected to grow further as the Council develops its 

commercial, income generating services.   

This team has 5 fte, including 2 marketing posts (1 of which is vacant). Capacity in this team 

has decreased over the last 4 years with the loss of a senior lead officer post and two part 

time posts.  Whilst day to day impact of this has been managed as far as possible, there is no 

available capacity to develop and deliver the strategic and ambitious Place marketing that is 

now required to lift the profile of the district, as a great place to live, work and do business, 

over the next few years, unless re-prioritised over other work streams. 

This proposal is considered to be an immediate priority as recruitment is required to take the 

majority of the work forward and this will take some weeks. 

 



Future needs will be informed by the Council’s ongoing aims to promote the district and attract 

investment and what progress and developments occur in the interim.  In that context, it is 

proposed to create the posts on a 2 year fixed term contract basis, with future needs being 

considered initially as part of the 2019/20 budget process.  That will allow time to draw on 

progress and any changing circumstances. 

5. Growth Lancashire 

Subscription to Growth Lancashire for business diagnostic and support services - 

£30K (£15K p.a. for 2 years) 

The sub regional arrangements for business support are very good and this means that the 

Council can limit its role to business engagement, understanding needs and improving access 

to support services, rather than providing a broad range of direct business support itself. 

Lancashire County Council provide some funding towards the sub regional arrangement with 

Growth Lancashire and the council can therefore access a basic service.  

However, most Local Authorities pay an annual subscription in order to gain more and better 

support as well as to gain the opportunity to influence the services that are provided for 

businesses in their districts.  This is considered to be an extremely cost effective way of 

supporting business growth whilst retaining just a small core central team. 

As part of the overall arrangement Growth Lancashire provide Evolutive, a very useful 

business database, which can provide for the Council’s needs in terms of managing its 

business enquiries in a tried and tested way without a further investment. 

Subscribing to Growth Lancashire is proposed for an initial period of two years and will be 

subject to review thereafter with any ongoing provision being considered as part of the 2019/20 

budget process.  

6. Business Events / Sponsorship 

Sponsorship costs - £13.1K  

Busines events, exhibitions and awards are part of the emerging Place marketing approach 

and provide an opportunity to raise the profile of the district, its businesses and the workforce, 

as well as to communicate and engage with businesses and provide support.  

Two important promotional opportunities have arisen, both to take place in September.  These 

are: 

 MIPIM UK, October 18th and 19th as part of Invest in Lancashire but with the potential 

to work with Morecambe Bay partners.  This is the UK’s primary property industry 

exhibition focusing this year on Investment, Housing and Residential, Retail and 

Logistics, Innovation and PropTech - £10K (estimated) 

 The first North Lancs Expo, a large business exhibition, organised by the Chamber 

with the Council’s and other partners’ support - £1.6K 

 The Bay Living Awards, a major new awards event associated with the Bay Living 

Magazine, which will celebrate the success of businesses and individuals at Lancaster 

University - £1.5K 

All of these events provide useful ways of promoting the district as a place for business, 

attracting investment and developing supply chains.  These are immediate requirements as 

commitments to these events need to be made well in advance. 

 



 

7. Marketing Materials 

Initial investment - Marketing and exhibition materials, signage, photography - £5K 

This proposal relates to MIPIM UK, the North Lancs Expo and the Bay Living awards. In 

addition, the Council is working with partners to deliver a business event in Lancaster Town 

Hall in June. 

Marketing and exhibition materials and some initial photography are required to support these 

events, much of which can be used again for future events. 

This is an immediate requirement as materials will need to be designed and produced in 

advance. 

8. Place Narrative and Prospectus 

Agency support to develop Place narrative and prospectus - £20K (estimated) 

The backbone of Place marketing is the Place narrative.  This draws out the particular 

strengths, characteristics and identity of a place and highlights opportunities and uniqueness 

so that there marketing and activities can be a focused on things that make a difference, rather 

than being all things to all people. Developing a Place narrative needs to be built on 

engagement and involvement so, although it can take little time, the end result is that there is 

a good consensus.  Funders and investors expect to see a clear place narrative as the 

background to any other specific information about the Place offer. 

It is proposed that early work towards developing a Place narrative is commenced in the near 

future, to underpin other marketing and promotion work later in the year, but also to support 

the development of Place narratives and promotion at the sub regional level.   

 

Officer comments 
 

HR 
 

Any newly created posts that form part of the proposals within the 
Cabinet Briefing will need to have an up to date job description and 
person specification in place to enable them to be evaluated through 
the Job Evaluation Process. Any new posts will be subject to the 
Council’s normal recruitment process.  
 

Finance 
 

The new posts will need to be created on a fixed term basis for the 
period of funding approved (i.e. 2 years).  Any proposed extension or 
permanency of the posts beyond this will need to be submitted as 
growth bids as part of the 2019/20 budget process. 
 

Legal 
  

Legal will need to be consulted on any contractual matters arising. 

 



 APPENDIX 2 
 

 
1. Introduction 
 
This report is at the request of the Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Economic 
Regeneration and Planning and to give early consideration to improving highway 
signing to and from central Morecambe. 
 

2. Background 
 
The new Bay Gateway provides ready access to central Morecambe from the M6 
and has freed up traffic movement between Lancaster and Morecambe. These give 
the prospect that many more people may choose to visit Morecambe and thereby 
provide a visitor economy boost. 
 
The main roads leading into and from Morecambe however are very poorly signed. 
A full audit in 2016 evidences that signing is variously inadequate, inconsistent and / 
or outdated. As a result the signing poorly informs visitors as to where they are and 
might wish to go and park. This makes for arrival (and departure) experiences that 
are often unsatisfactory and that commonly fail to meet visitors’ reasonable 
expectations. A further specific consequence is excess traffic circulation as people 
find their own way.  
 
The county council utilised sustainable transport funding to invest in new and 
rationalised signing for Lancaster centre in 2015/16. The improved signing included 
to city council car parks and visitor attractions (via brown signs). Unfortunately there 
is no realistic prospect that the county council can fund similar in central Morecambe. 
The county could however assist in design and regulatory advice and fabricate and 
install the signing if funded for this. 
 
The city council has resolved to consider a proposal to invest in new improved signing 
to and from Morecambe (and including to council car parks) in preparing its budget 
for 2018/19. 
 
Morecambe BID considers improving the signing to be a very high priority and has 
urged that the city council invest in this as early as possible. 
 

3. Report 
 
The proposal is to rationalise and upgrade the existing signing along main highway 
routes leading into and from central Morecambe to properly sign route choices and 
direct to and announce key attractions and the car parks (often city council) that serve 
these. This to involve replacement of inadequate and obsolete highway signing with 
new rationalised and improved signing scheme with a minimum 10 year design life.  
This would include brown and white visitor signing and car park signing as possible 
to ensure that visitors arrive where they want to be.  
 
 
 

Report to CABINET BRIEFING 

Report of CHIEF OFFICER REGENERATION AND PLANNING 

Subject SIGNING MAIN ROADS INTO MORECAMBE  



Routes involved – 
 

 B5321 – Shrimp roundabout to Central Drive 

 A5105 -  Broadway and the length of Marine Road 

 A 589  -  Coastal Road (north)  
 

3. Financial implications 
 
A full upgrade of signing along main roads is estimated at costing some £60K, to 
include for costs of new signs to highways standards estimated at up to £20K and up 
to £40K in traffic management and installation costs. These cost estimates are based 
on successful implementation experience in Lancaster centre. 
 
Cost savings of some £10 – 15K could reasonably be achieved by reducing the scope 
of works to concentrate on the top priority routes for visitor traffic i.e the B5321 and 
the central stretch of Marine Road from Broadway through to Central Drive. 
 
The council’s outturn costs might be mitigated via seeking contributions from the 
county council and Morecambe BID. 
 
City council regeneration officers could lead in design and to project manage the 
work if this is considered a sufficient priority compared to certain other work. 
 

4. Options and analysis 
 

The specific options are to commit to none, any or all or any of the recommended 
items. To do so would enable implementation in autumn / winter 2017/18 in time for 
the 2018 visitor season.  Not to commit would still mean that investment could be 
considered as part of the council’s budget process for 2018/19. If then decided upon 
lead in times would mean implementation would be autumn / winter 2018/19 for the 
2019 season.   
 
Members should also consider whether expenditure on these items – 
 

 Meets the economic growth purposes of the Reserve  

 Is a priority compared to that other demands upon what is a finite budget.  
 
 
 
 

 
 


	Agenda
	1 ECONOMIC RESERVE GROWTH ALLOCATIONS
	Briefing Note - Economic Growth Reserve Cabinet 200617
	Appendix 1 - Economic Growth Requests 200617
	Appendix 2 - Signage Request 200617


